
1 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

Mr.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

OGUNQUIT PLANNING BOARD  
PUBLIC HEARINGS and REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING  

MINUTES 
 

DUNAWAY CENTER MAIN AUDITORIUM 
DECEMBER 10, 2018 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
1. JACKIE & RON, LLC - ANGELO’S – 355 Main Street – Map 7 Block 29 GBD2 - 

Proposed Amendments to the July 24, 2017 Planning Board Design Review and Site 
Plan Review Approvals. 

 
 Proposed Amendments: 

After the Fact:  
 Remove stone wall along Route One; and replace it with black metal fence. 

 
New Amendments: 

 Amend patio area from 600sf to a total of 1500sf; 
 Clarify “service area”; 
 Game ending time to coincide with ½ hour after sunset; 
 Outside service until 10:00 p.m.; and closing of outside patron area at 11:00 

p.m. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that the Board held a Site Visit at this property earlier in the day; and he asked 
if there was anyone who wished to speak for, or against, this application. 
 
Peter Kahn (3 Tern Street) asked if the stone wall was existing or if the “removal” was from the 
earlier Planning Board Approval. 
 
Mr. Wilkos responded that there is no existing stone wall, the wall was part of the original 
Approval plan. 
 
Mr. Kahn asked if the amended expansion of the patio is also an “after-the-fact” application. 
 
Mr. Wilkos responded that the service area is currently 600 sf and is proposed to go to 1500sf. 
 

Town of Ogunquit 
Planning Board 
Post Office Box 875 
Ogunquit, Maine 03907-0875 
 
Tel: 207-646-9326 



2 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

Mr. Kahn asked if the owner of the property was present to explain why he made the change 
from the stone wall to the fence without first getting the Board’s approval to make that change. 
 
Mr. Wilkos responded that the Applicant’s representative may answer that question. 
 
Leon Aronson (13 Green Needle Lane) expressed concern about the expansion of outside 
operation hours; and possible increase in noise level. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if Mr. Aronson has ever expressed his concerns to the property owner or the 
police. 
 
Mr. Aronson responded that he had not. 
 
Wendy Levine (85 O’Beds Lane) asked about the protocol for after the fact changes to approved 
Planning Board Plans; and what happens when an applicant comes back before the Board asking 
for a variance. She stated that her neighbor has been asking for years to put up a shed in her back 
yard. She asked Ms. Levine for a variance which she (Ms. Levine) gave her; and yet this 
neighbor has been denied a building permit. Ms. Levine asked if her neighbor should just go 
ahead and put up the shed anyway and ask for a variance later. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that he has said before that his number one “pet peeve” is after-the-fact 
applications. 
 
Ms. Levine responded that the Board needs to start saying “No the Board will not give a 
variance, that builders need to ask permission before they build”. 
 
Joe Palladino (7 Green Needle Lane) expressed his concern about noise increase with the 
expanded hours of outside operations. He also suggested that the Public Hearing should be held 
in the spring when more summer/seasonal property owners are in Ogunquit to give their input. 
He asked the Board to table the vote until April when seasonal residents can express their 
opinions. 
 
Mr. Palladino suggested that the Planning Board and Code Enforcement Officer enforce 
everything for private residents however they accept after-the-fact applications for businesses. 
Mr. Palladino stated that the noise from Angelo’s is unacceptable and that it gets worse at night. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if Mr. Palladino has ever expressed his concerns to the property owner or the 
police. 
 
Mr. Pallidino responded that he has not. 
 
Peggy Malumphy (45 Green Needle Lane) expressed concern about the expanded hours of 
operation, particularly the new breakfast service. She is concerned about the increase in traffic 
and noise particularly from busses. She suggested people will avoid the York tolls and come 
through Ogunquit on Route One to get breakfast, there will be bus fumes, noise increase, and 
more traffic 



3 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

 
Elaine Cooper (23 Spring Street) informed the Board that earlier that day she measured the patio 
and pavilion area and determined that there is already 1500sf built. She suggested the proposal 
will allow the applicant to add 60 more patrons outside; which will increase the noise level 
significantly. Ms. Cooper also pointed out that people from the neighborhood, some of who were 
not even notified, expressed concern at the July 27, 2017 Meeting.  Ms. Cooper stated that she 
was sure nobody has been notified about this evening’s meeting. 
 
Ms. Cooper stated that the Board originally required the restaurant to stop outside service at 9:00 
p.m. and now the applicant is coming back for a variance. She asked the Board to deny the 
request. Ms. Cooper stated that the increase of patio area from 600sf to 1500sf is also an after-
the-fact amendment. She agreed with the other comments that the Application should be tabled 
until a time when other  seasonal residents have the chance to come forward. 
 
Ms. Cooper stated that the Town Charter Chapter 4 and Chapter 11 say that when these things 
are seen to be happening, the Code Officer is responsible for following up. She suggested that 
this is a major restaurant on a major road and people could have seen this happening. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked the Recording Secretary if abutters were notified. 
 
The Recording Secretary responded that the abutters were notified when the application first 
came forward; and they were also notified about this afternoon’s site visit and this Public 
Hearing. 
 
Laurie Pocher (73 Glen Avenue and President of Ledgewood Commons Homeowners 
Association) read a letter from the Homeowners Members asking about the outdoor speakers and 
pavilion television; and if they would be in use during the upcoming summer. She expressed 
concern about the owner’s continued behavior of pushing beyond the Planning Board’s approval 
and asked the Board to deny the application for expanded hours of operation and for the use of 
outdoor games to ½ hour after sunset.  
 
Ms. Pocher also expressed concern about cars illegally parking at the rear of this property, on 
Glen Avenue, this often involved delivery vehicles which could not access the property due to 
the chain across the rear parking lot access way. Glen Avenue is not well light at night and 
illegally parked cars and increase in traffic on that road pose a danger. 
 
Ms. Pocher also asked if it was appropriate for Ms. Bevins to participate as a Planning Board 
Member in matters involving Jackie & Ron LLC. She asked Ms. Bevins to continue to recuse 
herself from voting on this application. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that the Board held a Site Visit at Angelo’s earlier in the day and no one came. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was anyone else who wished to be heard, there was no one and the 
Public Hearing was closed at 6:18 p.m.  
 



4 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

2. SCOTT VOGEL – 16 Beach Street – Map 7 Block 98 & 100 – DBD – Design Review 
 for a pre 1930 Structure. Application to relocate access from the Front Porch corner  
 to the side of 16 Beach Street. 
 
Jerry DeHart, the Applicant’s representative provided an overview of the project. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that a Site Visit was held earlier in the day which was very well attended. 
Participants at the Site Visit included: members of the Planning Board, the Code Enforcement 
Officer, the Fire Chief, Police Chief, Public Works Director, and the Conservation Commission 
Chairman. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was anyone who wished to speak for, or against, this application. 
There being no one the Public Hearing was closed at 6:22 p.m. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 

A. ROLL CALL –  
 
Members Present: Steve Wilkos (Chair) 
   Rusty Hayes (Vice Chair) 
   Muriel Freedman 
   Jackie Bevins  
   Mark MacLeod 
   Priscilla Botsford (1st Alternate) 
   Brian Aromando (2nd Alternate) 
   
Also Present:  Scott Heyland, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -  
 
C. MISSION STATEMENT – The Mission Statement was read by Mr. MacLeod. 
 
D. MINUTES –  November 26, 2018 Regular Business Meeting. 
 
Mr. Hayes Moved to Accept the Minutes of the November 26, 2018 Meeting as Amended. 
HAYES/MACLEOD 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
E. PUBLIC INPUT – For any matter NOT already on this Agenda. 
 
Mr. Wilkos asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to speak on any matter not on 
this meeting’s agenda. 
 
Marsha Northrop (2 Fieldstone Lane) asked if the new ReMax sign on Route One meets the 
Code Requirements with regard to size. 
 
Mr. Heyland responded that it does. 



5 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

 
Joe Palladino (7 Green Needle Lane) recommended the Board fine applicants who submit after-
the-fact applications.  
 
The Board members noted that they held a Workshop regarding After-the-Fact Applications and 
they asked the Recording Secretary to locate those minutes. 
 
Elaine Cooper (23 Spring Street) referenced Zoning Ordinance Article 4.3 which states that there 
is a mechanism in place to penalize after-the-fact applicants who do not follow the code. 
 
Mr. Heyland responded that Ms. Cooper is referencing language which applies to any violation 
of the Ordinance. The protocol is for the Town Attorney to petition the Court for a fine for the 
violation. It does not involve a fine which may be established by the Planning Board or the Code 
Enforcement Office. 
 
Wendy Levine (85 O’Beds Lane) asked if a fine would stop someone from not following the 
plan. She suggested if applicants don’t do what the Planning Board authorized them to do then 
they tear it down and do what was approved. 
 
Mr. Hayes responded that there was an instance where the Board suggested a fine however the 
Select Board and Town Manager reduced the fine amount so much that it became ineffective. 
 
Mr. Heyland added that fines allow people to buy their way out of problems. There had been one 
after-the-fact application which cost the applicant over $10,000 to put things right. Perhaps the 
goal should be to see that the final design is what the Board and the Town want. 
 
Mr. Wilkos clarified that the current Town Manager and Select Board were not in office during 
the case referenced by Mr. Hayes.  
   
F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS –  
 
1. JACKIE & RON, LLC - ANGELO’S – 355 Main Street – Map 7 Block 29 GBD2 - 

Proposed Amendments to the July 24, 2017 Planning Board Design Review and Site 
Plan Review Approvals. 

 
 Proposed Amendments: 

After the Fact:  
 Remove stone wall along Route One; and replace it with black metal fence. 

 
New Amendments: 

 Amend patio area from 600sf to a total of 1500sf; 
 Clarify “service area”; 
 Game ending time to coincide with ½ hour after sunset; 
 Outside service until 10:00 p.m.; and closing of outside patron area at 11:00 

p.m. 
 



6 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

Ms. Bevins stated that she hasn’t owned this property for over a year and was not involved in the 
operation of Anglo’s last year; and she asked to be recused. 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Recuse Ms. Bevins. 
MACLEOD/HAYES 4:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
Ms. Botsford was moved from 1st alternate position to full voting member for the duration of this 
application. 
 
Mr. DeHart summarized that the original Planning Board discussion included a small stone wall, 
vegetative buffering, and the currently existing fence. He noted that with a change in 
management and with the development of a project things change. He suggested that property 
owners can’t put a halt to a project and come back before the Board, particularly when they don’t 
think they are doing anything wrong. The fence in question is a landscaping element which 
appeared to be a better option to keep people safe; because that was an issue that had been raised. 
This was discussed several times during the Public Hearing and at other meetings during the 
original application process.  
 
Mr. DeHart stated that the patio area is currently 1500sf. The inside area was 5,035 sf which was 
approved by the Planning Board in the 1980s. Seating was moved from the inside to the outside 
which is the reason for the request to clarify the “service area”.  There will be no increase in the 
number of seats or parking; only an exchange of seating/service location. 
 
Regarding the ½ hour after sunset limit for the outside games; Mr. DeHart noted that the time of 
sunset changes throughout the summer season; and he confirmed that there will be no artificial 
lighting added to the gaming area. 
 
Regarding the extension of hours of service, the Applicant has received no complaints from 
neighbors or police. Mr. DeHart also noted that another application in the Downtown Area has 
been approved to stop outside service at 10:00 p.m. and have the outside area cleared by 11:00 
p.m. This applicant is asking for the same consideration.  
 
The Board agreed to deal with each element of the applicant’s requests separately 
 

 Remove stone wall along Route One; and replace it with black metal fence. 
 
Mr. MacLeod reiterated his concern that the change from the approved stone wall to the black 
metal fence, without coming back for Planning Board approval first, really bothers him.  
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that one option the Board has is to tell the Applicant to remove the black metal 
fence and put in the originally approved stone wall. Another option the Board has is to deny the 
application in total. 
 
Ms. Freedman asked how high the stone wall would have been. 
 



7 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

It was determined that it would have been much lower than the existing black metal fence; about 
two feet tall. It was purely decorative and a demarcation for the property line. 
 
Ms. Freedman responded that a low stone wall concerns her. She felt the black metal fence is 
safer. 
 
Mr. Hayes agreed that the black fence is safer. He noted that that Board also required the 
Applicant to plant arborvitae trees six feet apart which he has done. In time these trees will hide 
a stone wall or the black metal fence.  
 
Ms. Botsford expressed her opinion that, based upon the public comments, she feels it would be 
reasonable to table the application until more people can participate. She sees the changes to the 
hours of operation, music, and games will have a greater impact on neighbors than the fence. 
 
Mr. Hayes agreed that no one on the Board likes after-the-fact applications. He noted the 
changes which were made to the new Blue Water Inn building which ended up costing that 
applicant over $10,000. He noted that, in comparison, to that project this applicant’s change is 
minor. He expressed his belief that the fence is safer and he doesn’t see any reason to hold this 
applicant up.  He suggested that tabling an application in order to get more people in to speak 
about it would be unfair. The Board has never done that.  
 
Mr. Heyland pointed out that the Applicant is coming up for his liquor license renewal, and if 
this Planning Board Application is denied he (Mr. Heyland) would not be able to sign off on the 
Applicant’s liquor application. The Select Board would have to decide whether or not to approve 
the Liquor Application.  
 
Mr. MacLeod agreed with Mr. Hayes that the fence is safer than the proposed stone wall, 
however he stated again that it was a design change done without Planning Board Approval. He 
noted that the Board had a very lengthy discussion about the stone wall during the original 
application. 
 
Mr. Wilkos agreed and reminded the Board that they have the option of making the applicant 
remove the fence and replace it with the stone wall. 
 
Mr. MacLeod suggested that replacing the stone wall with the fence without Board approval 
makes him question the Applicant’s willingness to adhere to the other conditions of the 
application. He suggested the Board might approve the fence and deny the other requests.  
 
Ms. Botsford reiterated that the fence is not as impactful to the neighbors as the other requests 
which involve an increase in noise and traffic.  
 
Mr. Aromando noted that one repercussion is for the Town to take the Applicant to Superior 
Court which may impose a fine of anywhere between $100 and $2500 per day the violation is in 
place. 
 



8 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

Mr. Aromando asked about possible harm; and suggested that the Board needs to ask itself how 
much it wants to invest in sending the message to the public that it will not accept applicants who 
unilaterally do something which was not approved. He suggested the Board look at the fence as 
to whether it is appropriate; and if it is safer to have the fence or to make the applicant replace it 
with the stone wall? His (Mr. Aromando’s) preference is to look to the general welfare and 
safety of the public first. The question is whether or not the fence rises to a level for Design 
Review that it can no longer be allowed to remain. If the fence is safer than the stone wall, he 
would not make the Applicant replace it with a less safe stone wall. He suggested that if the 
Board allows the fence to remain they might deny the other requests until the Applicant can 
prove that he will be a respectful business owner and good neighbor to the Town.  
 
Mr. Aromando also explained that the patio can be 1500 sf however the Applicant may only 
serve people within the approved 600sf. 
 
Mr. Heyland noted that when the patio was originally put in place the owner had more tables set 
up for dining area. He (Mr. Heyland) made the applicant remove the excessive tables. 
 
Mr. Hayes pointed out that, if the Board were to deny the other requests it would need to be able 
to defend its decision to deny.  
 
Mr. DeHart reiterated that is seems excessive to penalize this applicant for landscaping changes. 
The fence is safer than a stone wall. He noted that the Board has not penalized other applicants to 
that degree. 
 
Mr. Hayes agreed that the fence is safer. He added that if the Board doesn’t approve the 
application Mr. Heyland cannot sign off on the liquor license application which could effectively 
put the Applicant out of business. The Planning Board is not about putting people out of 
business. That being said he reiterated that he does not like after-the-fact applications even minor 
changes such as this one. 
 
Mr. Hayes suggested that if the Board requires the Applicant to remove the fence and replace it 
with the stone wall; and something happens and someone gets harmed the Board will be wishing 
they had allowed the fence to remain. 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Approve the After-the-Fact Application to remove the stone wall 
along Route One; and replace it with black metal fence. 
MACLEOD/FREEDMAN (4:1) (Mr. Wilkos Dissenting) 

 
Mr. Heyland noted that the patio layout was established, for safety reasons, when the fire pit was 
installed.  Once that was done the Applicant set up dining tables on the expanded patio which he 
(Mr. Heyland) made him remove. This did not increase the seating capacity, however it was not 
the seating plan arrangement the Board originally approved. 
 
Mr. Heyland explained that the Occupancy Load is set by the Fire Department. His (Mr. 
Heyland’s) office sets the dining capacity based on things like number of bathrooms, parking, 
etc. The two numbers don’t always line up. So while the proposed patio area may be set at 



9 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

1500sf that doesn’t mean the entire area can be used for service dining.  This application is well 
under the maximum allowable occupancy load. 
 
Ms. Botsford reminded the Board that the public input at the time of the original application 
indicated comfort with the 600sf service area. She suggested an increase to 1500 sf would be a  
disservice to the public. She noted that there were five people at this meeting asking the Board 
not to approve the expansion. 
 
Mr. Hayes reviewed some of the input received from abutters both during the original 
application and for this application. Most of the concerns seemed to be about the “what 
if” …cigarettes, noise, illegal parking, etc. Mr. Hayes noted that there have been no police 
reports or complaints for this business. 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Approve the Application to Amend the patio area from 600sf to a 
Total of 1500sf; 
MACLEOD/HAYES 1:4 (Mr. Hayes Assenting) Motion fails.  
 
It was determined that due to the failure of the second motion there was no need to discuss 
the clarification of the “service area”.  
 
Mr. DeHart stated that the State of Maine sets up hunting times per the sunset rule due to 
changes in length of daylight over the course of the summer.  
 
Mr. Heyland added that the previous approval was for games to end at 9:00 p.m. This change 
will actually be more restrictive. The latest sunset during the summer is 8:26 p.m. 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Approve the application to set game ending time to coincide with 
½ hour after sunset. 
MACLEOD/BOTSFORD 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
Mr. Wilkos summarized that the current hours of outside operation are closing at 9:00 and 
clearing of the outside area by 10:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Hayes asked what time the district allows businesses to close. 
 
Mr. Heyland responded that it would be 1:00 a.m. 
 
Mr. Hayes noted that the Police Chief has stated that they haven’t received any calls for this 
business. He added that the Board can always vote to review the approval after a period of time 
and if there have been complaints the Board may revert back to the 9:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m. 
timeframe. He noted that the Board recently did this with another application which was exactly 
like this one. 
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Approve the application to expand the outside service until 10:00 
p.m.; and closing of outside patron area at 11:00 p.m. with a one year trial period; and for 
the application to be reviewed at the first Planning Board Meeting in August 2019. 



10 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

MACLEOD/HAYES 4:1 (Mr. Wilkos Dissenting) 
 
Mr. Heyland asked Mr. DeHart to submit revised plans indicating the notes from this 
meeting as well as the 600sf service area. He also asked Mr. DeHart to include the occupancy 
and seating numbers on the Final Plan. 
 
At this time Ms. Bevins returned to the Board table and Ms. Botsford returned to 1st Alternate 
position.  
 
2. SCOTT VOGEL – 16 Beach Street – Map 7 Block 98 & 100 – DBD – Design Review 
 for a pre 1930 Structure. Application to relocate access from the Front Porch corner 
 to the side of 16 Beach Street. 
 
Mr. Wilkos noted that the Board held a Site Visit earlier in the day as well as a Public Hearing 
earlier this evening. 
 
Mr. DeHart gave a brief summary of the proposed project. 
 
Fire Chief Ed Smith informed the Board that he can get a truck into the proposed driveway as 
well as the existing driveway. He noted that the building is sprinkled and he has been able to get 
both a fire truck and a rescue truck in back of those buildings.   
 
Public Works Director Carol Murray recommended a traffic study to address issues such as left 
hand turns, drainage from storm water runoff, and compliance of the sidewalk location to the 
driveway. She suggested a full Traffic Engineering Study cover things such as: turning radius, 
drainage, pedestrian safety, sight distance for pedestrians and motorists; and that the study 
should be peer reviewed.  
 
Ms. Murray expressed concern about the crosswalk proximity and the safety of pedestrians on 
the sidewalk; as well as meeting all ADA requirements. 
 
Mr. Hayes clarified that it would be a traffic study; and not a traffic count. 
 
Ms. Murray responded that she would want to see delivery schedules and counts compared to 
how things are today.  
 
Mr. Hayes asked about catch basins in that area. 
 
Ms. Murray responded that she didn’t see any during the site visit; however the engineer could 
address this question; and the Applicant might be required to address the issue of runoff as well.  
 
Mr. MacLeod added that the roof currently drains onto grass; with the proposed new driveway 
the roof will drain onto pervious surface. The water may run out onto Beach Street or to the back 
parking lot. 
 
Mr. Hayes noted that the neighbor has three drywells.  



11 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

 
Mr. Heyland asked if the area behind the building is a parking area. He wanted to be sure that the 
proposed plan fits the Ordinance definition of a driveway. 
 
Mr. DeHart responded that paving will be removed as part of the project. This should address the 
drainage issue. The parking area will be able to handle small delivery trucks, while larger 
delivery trucks will still be stopping on the road. It will not be a parking lot. Mr. DeHart stated 
that 16 Beach Street has a parking lot; and they will put up signs addressing no parking on the 
other lot. He stated that the proposed plan will follow the definition as a “driveway”.  
 
Mr. Wilkos asked why the new driveway isn’t on the other side of the building. 
 
Mr. DeHart responded that it would require the removal of a pre 1930 garage; and that the 
abutter is against locating it there. 
 
Mr. MacLeod noted his concern that water not drain out onto Beach Street; that the new lower 
(3’tall) hedges at Veteran’s Park will look much better and will provide a better line of sight.  
 
Ms. Bevins expressed concern that it will change the look of Veterans Park and the whole 
downtown area.  
 
Mr. DeHart agreed to work with Ms. Murray to get a full engineering study which should satisfy 
the Planning Board’s needs.  
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Table the Application for SCOTT VOGEL – 16 Beach Street – 
Map 7 Block 98 & 100 – DBD – Design Review for a pre 1930 Structure. Application to 
relocate access from the Front Porch corner to the side of 16 Beach Street pending receipt 
of an engineering study submitted by the Applicant; and receipt of a peer review from the 
Town. 
MACLEOD/BEVINS 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
G.  NEW BUSINESS –  
 
1. JAY GRAY – FOOD FOR THOUGHT – 414 Main Street – Map 8 Block 26 – GBD2 
 – Design Review Application for a post 1930 structure.  Application to remodel 
 outside seating and serving area for a new restaurant.  
 
Jay Gray gave a brief overview of the project as a 40 seat gastro pub with only outdoor seating. It 
will include a fence and coverage over the seating area to reduce noise from Route One, Sun and 
Heat, and rain. It will include a ten seat bar next to the building. The plan is to open at 11:00 a.m. 
and stop serving food by 10:00 p.m.  
 
Mr. Gray stated that the three existing “take out style” windows will be removed and replaced 
with a large window so that people seated at the bar can see into the kitchen and see the food 
being prepared. 
 



12 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

Mr. MacLeod asked if there was sufficient parking. 
 
Mr. Heyland confirmed that there is sufficient parking including one handicapped spot.  He 
asked how high the fence will be. 
 
Mr. Gray responded that the fence will be 6’ tall. Motorists driving by will not be able to see the 
bar or into the seating area.  
 
Mr. Heyland suggested that the Board may want to see a drawing of any additional cosmetic 
design to the fence. He also asked about any print on the sails. 
 
Mr. Gray responded that he hopes to get real sails from the Agamenticus Sail Club however that 
may not work out and he will have to use another style of sail for the awnings.  
 
Mr. Heyland suggested that the Board doesn’t want to approve a design plan only to have 
something different used that does not match what was approved. 
 
Mr. Gray confirmed that the existing buffering, requested by the abutter during the last 
applicant’s hearing, is still in place and will remain. He also confirmed that any background 
music will be very soft and the proposed outside television will be used for scrolling images of 
the food and some of the activities in which the restaurant engages. He confirmed that the 
television screens will not be visible from passing motor vehicle drivers. 
 
The Board determined that no Site Visit was necessary. 
 
A Public Hearing was scheduled to take place on January 14, 2019 at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Mr. MacLeod Moved to Table the Application for JAY GRAY – FOOD FOR THOUGHT 
– 414 Main Street – Map 8 Block 26 – GBD2 – Design Review Application for a post 1930 
structure.  Application to remodel outside seating and serving area for a new restaurant. 
MACLEOD/HAYES 4:0 UNANIMOUS (Ms. Bevins was out of the room). 
 
H. CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER BUSINESS – None 
 
I. OTHER BUSINESS –  
 
1. Discussion of Ogunquit Playhouse Workshop.  
 
The Board scheduled a 2nd workshop to take place on January 14, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.  
 
At that time the Board should have received the language for the proposed amendments. 
 
2. Final Review of Restaurant Definitions (Draft 4 November 27, 2018). 
 
The Board scheduled a Public Hearing to take place on January 14, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
 



13 
Planning Board Meeting December 10, 2018 

3. Confirm January to June 2019 Planning Board Meeting Schedule. 
 
The Board confirmed a schedule of meetings for January through June 2019 as proposed: 
 
January 14 
January 28 
 
February 11 
February 25 
 
March 11 
Mach 25 
 
April 8 
April 22 
 
May 13 
Wednesday May 29 
 
June 10 
June 24 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT -     
 
Ms. Freedman Moved to Adjourn at 8:35 p.m. 
FREEDMAN/MACLEOD 5:0 UNANIMOUS 
 
 
     Respectfully Submitted 

     Maryann Stacy 
     Maryann Stacy 
     Town of Ogunquit 
     Planning Board 
     Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved on January 14, 2019 


